
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 

Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 10 January 2022 

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 18 January 2022 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple, R Lock and P Pennington 
 

Non elected Members:  Vacancy 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 

 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 11) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on the 5th October 2021.  
 

3.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered. 

 



 
 

 

4.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

6.   Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 12 - 35) 

 To receive a report from External Auditors, Grant Thornton.   
 

7.   Fraud Assessment (Pages 36 - 45) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager.  

 

8.   Reports Issued to Date (Pages 46 - 52) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager.  

 

9.   Progress Against Audit Actions (Pages 53 - 54) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

10.   Code of Governance (Pages 55 - 70) 

 To receive a report from the Service Improvement Officer.  
 

11.   Appointment of External Auditors (Pages 71 - 78) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.   
 

12.   Forward Plan (Page 79) 

13.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

14.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

15.   Risk Register  

 To receive a verbal update from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 
 

Tuesday, 5 October 2021 - 10.00 am 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

 
 Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 

 

 Councillors D Bushby, K Hepple, R Lock and P Pennington 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

 D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 
 J Walter - Strategy, Performance & ICT Manager 

 J Jewell - ITC Security & Infrastructure Specialist 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 

 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 
 

 A Davies - Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton 
 J Masci - Key Audit Partner, Grant Thornton 
 P Middlemass - Devon Audit Partnership Manager 

 
92.    MINUTES  

 

Chair welcomed new members Councillor Lock and Councillor Pennington to the 
meeting.   

 
The minutes of the last Committee held on Tuesday 27 July 2021 were presented 

and no issues were raised.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Bushby and –  

 
Resolved: 

 
That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  
 

(Vote: Yes 3, Abstain 2) 
 

93.    ACTION LIST  
 

There were no outstanding actions on the action list.  

 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

 
94.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 
95.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Craigie and –  
 

Resolved: 
That the agenda as circulated be agreed.  
 

(Vote: Yes – unanimous) 
 

96.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 
 

97.    AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE  
 

Paul Middlemass (Devon Audit Partnership Manager) joined the Committee 

remotely to present members with a summary of the internal audits competed since 
the last committee meeting.   

 
Appendix A was highlighted as a summary of the audit findings and it was 
confirmed that the detailed report for each audit had previously been circulated. 

 
Three internal audits were discussed. The opinion of the audit on debtors was 

‘reasonable assurance’. The opinion of the audits on Cemeteries and Homeworking 
Security and Capacity were ‘limited assurance’.  
 

In relation to debtors it was explained that this audit considered how debt 
management was handled over the previous year and the impact of resources 

being moved to manage grant distribution.  It was confirmed that debt did increase 
slightly over the year, and this was mostly due to the decrease in monitoring over 
that time due to staff being allocated to Covid duties such as grant distribution.  

 
In relation to cemeteries the Devon Audit Partnership Manager highlighted that the 

grounds maintenance contract would be moving in house.  It was confirmed that, in 
order to improve the issues identified by the audit, regular meetings with the current 
contractor are now in place. IT systems were also mentioned as actions that 

needed taking forward.  
 

In relation to homeworking security and capacity the use of council mobile phones 
and remote working technologies was focused on and the audit was benchmarked 
using a Government model regarding the controls that should be in place.  The 

Devon Audit Partnership Manager referred members to the list of strengths and 
weaknesses listed in the report and explained that 3 ‘high’  recommendations and 6 

‘medium’ recommendations had been made and this was indicative of the high-risk 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

area being looked at. The Devon Audit Partnership Manager stated he was 
encouraged that actions had been implemented immediately, or will be completed 

within 3 months. 
 

Members expressed their concern regarding the audit on cemeteries, due to 
receiving complaints from members of the public and the distress this causes.  
 

Members also highlighted that the service currently had no member of staff trained 
to use the AutoCAD software and queried why this hadn’t been addressed straight 

away.  The Devon Audit Partnership Manager explained that updates appear to be 
completed when required by external CAD providers and there was a plan to recruit 
someone with this experience. There was a further query regarding the software 

licence, and the Devon Audit Partnership Manager arranged to provide an update 
on this following the meeting.  

 
Members asked what the next steps would be considering some audits provided 
limited assurance.  The Devon Audit Partnership Manager confirmed follow up work 

would take place to check on the progress of actions in early 2022. This would be 
alongside the usual tracking of actions that the Section 151 Officer completes.  

 
Member’s queried whether the contractor for cemeteries was still being paid, it was 
confirmed by the Section 151 Officer that the contractor is only paid for the work 

they complete.  
 

Members duly noted the report. 
 

98.    EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

The Devon Audit Partnership Manager introduced a report on the effectiveness of 

the Audit Committee and highlighted the CIPFA self-assessment checklist, which is 
recognised as a good practice tool for Audit Committees to use when reviewing 
their effectiveness.   

 
It was confirmed that the Section 151 Officer and the Devon Audit Partnership 

Manager have already reviewed and completed the checklist as far as possible. It 
was requested that members consider their input at meetings and the continued 
use of hybrid meetings.   

 
Members worked through and discussed the separate sections of the Audit 

Checklist. There was discussion in relation to reporting to Full Council and the 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) confirmed that the Data 
Protection Regulations were referred in 2018 after being pulled up in an audit 

report. 
 

There was a further discussion regarding the need for an Independent Members 
and it was confirmed that the Council had tried to recruit, but this had not been 
successful.  This was now being explored with Devon Audit Partnership and 

attendance by the Committee Chair or Section 151 Officer at the Devon Audit 
Management Board was suggested as a way to push this forward.  It was also 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

suggested that members approach people they know with relevant skills to support 
the Committee as Independent Members.  

 
Members queried why consultation hadn’t been completed since 2016 and the 

Chair queried the ‘no’ in the report.  The Devon Audit Partnership Manager agreed 
to revise this date if consultation had taken place.  
 

Chair referred to the note on the bottom of the Forward Plan regarding private 
meetings with External Auditors and requested the reinstatement of pre-meetings 

that took place before Covid.  Grant Thornton confirmed that they had attempted to 
reinstate these meeting and agreed this would be picked up again with the Chair.  
She also suggested extending this invite to Internal Audit too, given the amount of 

cross over taking place, especially in relation to value for money work. 
 

Following a query about Governance it was confirmed by the Section 151 Officer 
that training was being arranged for Members. The Draft Audit Plan was also 
highlighted as an opportunity for Members to discuss possible areas to audit – this 

is on the Forward Plan for March 2022.  
 

There was discussion regarding the scope of the Governance role and members 
role in challenging and raising concerns, especially in relation to more complex and 
specialist areas.  Officers explained the role of the Committee and members, 

alongside the wider governance processes of Torridge District Council and Full 
Council and where the Committee sits within this. There was a further discussion 

about how the audit process supports members in their decision making.  
 
The Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) also stated that Senior 

Managers were open to challenge and where they could not provide detail at Full 
Council or in committee meetings there was an opportunity for members to contact 

them with queries directly when needed.   
 
Following the discussion, the Devon Audit Partnership Manager arranged to update 

the report using feedback from members at the meeting and said he would add 
detail on how the work would be progressed. 

 
 Members duly noted the report.  
 

99.    AUDIT ACTIONS  
 

The Section 151 Officer presented a report on audit action progress to Committee 
Members, he mentioned that some updates on progress had been made since the 
agenda was published.  

 
It was confirmed that out of the 62 agreed actions, 27 actions are open and a total 

of 6 were now considered late – 10%.  The Section 151 Officer went on to provide 
updates on the remaining late actions for members.  
 

Members queried the Debtors actions and asked whether there were concerns 
regarding capacity of the team.  Officers explained the action in more detail for 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

members and clarified the team arrangements and internal processes for debt 
recovery. 

 
Members duly noted the report. 

 
100.    GOING CONCERN REPORT  

 

The Section 151 Officer ran through the Going Concern Report with members and 
picked out the key highlights of the report, which concludes the Council’s status as 

a ‘going concern’ in light of the closure of the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21.  
 
Members duly noted the report. 

 
101.    ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

 

The Section 151 Officer updated Committee Members on behalf of the Service 
Improvement Officer.  

 
It was confirmed that no changes have been made to the document since it was 

brought to Committee in July and the Chair was being asked to formally sign off the 
report.   
 

Following a discussion about the section on scrutiny and the involvement of 
External Overview & Scrutiny Committee with some of the call-ins, it was suggested 

an amendment be made to the report to include External Overview & Scrutiny in 
this section.   
 

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Hepple and –  
 

Resolved:  
 
That the Annual Governance Statement be signed off with an amendment to page 

49, to include External Overview & Scrutiny in relation to decisions ‘called in’.  
 

(Vote: Yes – Unanimous)    
 

102.    AUDIT FINDING REPORT 2020-21 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 

Chair introduced Julie Macsi (Key Audit Partner) who went on to highlight some of 

the changes to the Code of Audit Practice, which means the Value for Money 
assessment isn’t included in this report, though there is some commentary.  She 
went on to explain to members how the Value for Money work has changed in 

scope.  
 

It was confirmed that the Value for Money work has started, and that Grant 
Thornton are now required to provide an Auditors Annual Report which captures 
the Value for Money assessment.  Additionally, it was stated that the National Audit 

Office have granted another 3 months for the Value for Money work to be 
completed – Value for Money conclusions are now required within 3 months of 

issuing the opinion.  

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

 
It was confirmed that the report will come to the Committee once completed.  

 
A progress update on the Audit Opinion was provided for members and the Key 

Audit Partner explained the issues that needed to be resolved. It was explained 
these issues may impact on the wording of the opinion but it would still remain as 
an unqualified audit opinion. The Key Audit Partner went on to summarise the 

position in relation to the financial statements and thanked the Section 151 Officer 
and his team for their work stating that the audit had gone very well. 

 
Andrew Davies (Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton) then ran through the Audit 
Findings Report with members and explained the outstanding items.  It was 

confirmed that the letter of assurance from the Devon Pension Fund auditors 
should be available by mid-October. 

 
Chair queried the delay and asked if there would be similar issues in future audits.  
Julie Macsi explained she is the Engagement Lead for the Devon Pension Fund 

and provided an updated in relation to the delays.  She assured the Committee that 
there are plans to review how the pension work is delivered in future to improve the 

position next year.  
 
The Engagement Manager confirmed the other outstanding item was in relation to 

Property Plant and Equipment and confirmed that existence checks were now 
completed and a response from the valuer had now been received, so work is 

progressing.  It was mentioned there is an area of follow regarding Material 
Uncertainty, and Grant Thornton would be speaking to the Valuer this week to try 
and resolve this.  

 
The Engagement Manager provided a summary of Grant Thornton’s findings and 

conclusions and highlighted the key findings for members.  
 
Chair asked members for any questions.  

 
Members queried whether Audit and Governance Committee will have a role in 

relation to the Trading Company.  The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) stated that Full Council have appointed the Board and the Board would run 
the Trading Company.  Audit and Governance may have a role in relation to 

financing the LATC and internal controls, but day to day decisions would be for the 
Board.   

 
The Key Audit Partner from Grant Thornton mentioned that the the Committee 
would have a role in seeking some assurance around the adequacy of the 

Governance. Chair requested an example in relation to how this would be 
achieved. She explained some other Local Authorities who have set up Trading 

Companies used internal audit around specific governance arrangements. She 
stated the Local Authority would have a responsibility, as a commissioner of 
services, to ensure there are adequate governance arrangements in place – she 

talked about using monitoring to hold the Trading Company to account on service 
delivery and to seek assurance as a commissioner.  

 

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

There was some discussion around the Trading Company, responsibilities of TDC 
as the parent company and potential risks.  It was explained that this would need to 

be addressed within the contract and by also by having the appropriate monitoring 
process in place. The Head of Legal & Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 

provided an overview on the work already taking place and highlighted the 
workshop members attended, where the specification was discussed.  
 

Member’s queried the audit fee in relation to the certification of housing benefits 
subsidy and this was explained by the Key Audit Partner, she explained he testing 

requirements set by the DWP and the required checks they are required to 
undertake depending on error rates.  There was a further discussion regarding the 
commissioning of this piece of work and how and when non-audit fees / additional 

charges are disclosed.  
 

Member’s queried the assessment key on page 64 and the Key Audit Partner and 
Section 151 Officer explained the assessment outcome and the provided some 
more context.  

 
Following a query from members the Section 151 Officer explained the tendering 

process for External Auditors and how this is coordinated nationally and the 
process for going out to tender individually.  There was a further question to Grant 
Thornton regarding a lack of Audit staff, which has been highlighted by the PSSA, 

and how this is being addressed.  The Key Audit Partner provided an update to 
members on how they are building their capacity to support the delivery of 

contracts. 
 
Member’s duly noted the report. 

 
103.    APPROVAL OF THE 2020-21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

PRESENTATION FROM THE SECTION 151 OFFICER  
 

The Section 151 Officer talked through a presentation on the statement of accounts 

with members and confirmed the key findings highlighted at the previous 
Committee meeting in July remained true.  

 
The Section 151 Officer went on to confirm some minor changes to the draft 
accounts with members, these were mainly typos and some additional detail and 

points of clarity.  These were highlighted and explained to members.  
 

It was queried with Grant Thornton whether the accounts could be approved and 
signed, if there are no changes recommended.  The Key Audit Partner confirmed 
this was acceptable, but recommended the Committee also provide any delegated 

authority to the Section 151 Officer, should anything arise from the discussions due 
to take place with the Valuer. It was explained that Committee Members could then 

be advised of any amendments via email.  
 
 

 
 

 

Page 9



8 
 

 
 

The Chair agreed to this change and congratulated the Section 151 Officer and his 
team for their work on the accounts in what has been an exceptionally difficult year.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Lock and –  

 
Resolved:  
 

That members formally approve the statement of accounts for the financial year 
2020/21.  It was also agreed that the statement of accounts would be signed and 

the Committee would delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer and Chair, 
should any subsequent modification be required. Any changes will be emailed to 
Committee Members.  

 
(Vote: For – unanimous)  

 
104.    LETTER OF REPRESENTATION - GRANT THORNTON  

 

The Key Audit Partner explained the Letter of Representation to members and ran 
through the process for signing the letter.  

 
It was then opened up to the Committee for any questions and recommended that 
the letter be approved for signature.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Pennington and –  

 
Resolved:  
 

That the letter of representation be approved for signature.  
 

(Vote: For – unanimous) 
 

105.    FORWARD PLAN  
 

The forward plan was agreed and noted by members.  

 
106.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Craigie and –  
 

Resolved:  
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 

10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 

(Vote: Unanimous) 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 10



9 
 

 
 

 
 

107.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

108.    VERBAL UPDATE ON EMERGING RISK  
 

The Section 151 Officer provided an update on the Corporate Risk Register, he ran 

through the identified emerging risks with Committee Members and took questions. 
 

Councillor Pennington declared a personal interest in relation to an item that was 
discussed.   
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Lock and –  
 

Resolved:  
 
To come out of Part II and close the meeting.  

 
(Vote: For – Unanimous)  

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.05 am and closed at 12.30 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  
 

 

Page 11



P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6



Commercial in confidence

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence





P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

Additional expenditure due to COVID-19 by class and service area (£ millions) (2020-21)

Shire 
District

Shire 
County

Unitary 
Authority

Metropolitan 
District

London 
Borough

Total

Adult Social Care – total 0.473 1,254.880 848.656 663.404 413.842 3,181.254

Children's social care - total (excluding 
SEND)

0.000 94.933 131.127 89.799 62.987 378.846

Housing - total (including homelessness 
services) excluding HRA

63.129 5.254 74.949 42.281 112.971 298.584

Environmental and regulatory services - total 33.564 68.097 67.512 66.704 63.556 299.433

Finance & corporate services - total 48.222 53.445 83.984 76.923 78.284 340.858

All other service areas not listed in rows 
above

184.550 634.578 584.924 564.737 395.137 2,363.926

Total 329.937 2,111.187 1,791.153 1,503.848 1,126.777 6,862.902

Income losses due to COVID-19 by class and source of income (£ millions) (2020-21)

Shire District Shire County Unitary Authority
Metropolitan 

District
London 
Borough

Total

Business rates 276.498 0.000 194.192 207.351 537.667 1,215.708

Council tax 399.037 0.000 217.633 191.219 232.727 1,040.616

Sales fees and 
charges

516.426 194.923 553.907 396.745 475.728 2,137.728

Commercial 
income

82.448 24.159 120.629 204.211 52.154 483.600

Other 33.494 39.947 27.163 53.664 45.166 199.435

Total 1,307.903 259.029 1,113.524 1,053.190 1,343.441 5,077.087

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2021/10/news-release-2020-21-
audited-accounts-psaa/

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

•

•

   

•

•

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

Climate change risk: A good practice guide for Audit and 
Risk Assurance Committees - National Audit Office (NAO) 
Report

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

 

 

•

•

•

P
age 34



P
age 35



 
  

Agenda Item   

REPORT OF DAP Audit Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee of 18 January 2022 

Subject: Assessment on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 

Date: 5th January 2022   

 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To advise the Audit & Governance Committee of the results of an 

assessment against the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and corruption.   
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
CIPFA‟s Counter Fraud Centre has a code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and 
corruption (see https://www.cipfa.org/-/media/files/services/ccfc/cipfa-code-of-practice-on-
managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption.pdf). 
 
The guidance emphasises the need for public service organisations to take responsibility to 
embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisation. This 
supports good governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong 
public management. 
 
This guidance is supplemented by the government‟s “Fighting Fraud Locally – the Local 
Government Fraud Strategy for the 2020s”. 
 
 

2. THE SCALE OF FRAUD & CORRUPTION 

 
Fraud affects the UK across all sectors and causes significant harm. The Office for National 
Statistics states that one in 16 members of the population is likely to fall victim. The 
Government‟s Economic Crime Plan 2019 states that the number of fraud offences rose by 
12% during 2018 to 3.6 million – constituting a third of all crimes in the UK. 
The last, most reliable, and comprehensive set of local authority figures was published by the 
National Fraud Authority in 2013 and indicates that the fraud threat may be costing the UK 
up to £52bn a year. The risk of fraud has increased significantly during the pandemic, 
including significant loss of public money related to the public money used to support society.   
 
Within these figures the fraud loss to local authorities totalled £2.1bn, but more recent 
estimates are higher. The Annual Fraud Indicator produced by Crowe Clark Whitehill 
estimated that figure may be as high as £7.8bn (in 2017) of which procurement fraud was 
estimated as £4.3bn. This study estimated that the total threat faced by the public sector was 
£40.4bn. The 2021 version of this report says the ONS has reported a 19.8% increase in the 
incidence of fraud in England and Wales during the Covid-19 emergency.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



 
  

 
 
CIPFA estimated in 2013 the types of fraud risk relevant to local authorities in the table 
below: 
 
 

 
 
 
Not all of the above fraud risks are relevant to Torridge, but the charts and information in the 
report, provide guidance on possible fraud areas and how to prevent, detect and investigate 
such fraud. 
 
 

3. ASSESSMENT REPORT 

The report at Appendix A is a DAP assessment of the standards in place at Torridge Council 
against the CIPFA code of practice.  
 

 Members of the Committee will note that, by and large, effective and appropriate standards 
are in place. There is an ongoing need to ensure that policies and procedures follow best 
practice and legislative requirements, and regular updates of practices assists in this.  
Overall, there are good principles to prevent, detect and investigate instances of fraud and 
corruption. 

 
Internal Audit will continue to ensure that standards and practices are embedded and remain 
effective at deterring and preventing fraud. 
 
 

4. IMPLICATIONS 
Legal Implications 
Compliance with the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. 
 
Financial Implications 
None 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 

Page 37



 
  

 
Sustainability Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 
Risk Management 
The external auditor provides members with assurance on the Financial Statements. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
None 
 
Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
Not consulted in advance of meeting. 
 
 

5. CONCLUSIONS 

Overall, the self-assessment provides good assurance that sound and effective fraud 
prevention arrangements are in operation. 
 
 

6. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to note: 

The range of controls in place to reduce the risk of fraud and corruption, supported by 
Internal and External Audit. 
 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Consultations: David Heyes Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer 

 
 

Contact Officer: Paul Middlemass, Devon Audit Partnership Audit Manager 
  

Background Papers: CIPFA code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally – a strategy for the 2020s. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 
  

 

Appendix A 

 
Torridge District Council 

Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally (FFCL) 2021 - Assessment of compliance 

January 2022 

1. CIPFA has a Fighting Fraud & Corruption locally strategy, companion, and checklist. 
It is against this checklist that the self-assessment has been completed. 

2. The CIPFA strategy and companion are recommended reading, and available for 
download from the CIPFA website. Simply go to the CIPFA website (cipfa.org) and search 

for “Fighting Fraud and Corruption”, or follow this link 
https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally 
3. Previous CIPFA strategies focused upon pillars of activity that summarised the areas 

local authorities should concentrate efforts on. These were „Acknowledge‟, „Prevent‟ and 
„Pursue‟.  Two new pillars (“Govern” and “Protect”) were added to the current strategy. The 

pillar of „Govern‟ sits before „Acknowledge‟. It is about ensuring there is appropriate tone 
from the top and should be included in local counter fraud strategies. 
 

 

 
 
5. CIPFA reports that local authorities have achieved success by following this 
approach; however, they now need to respond to an increased threat, and further develop 

and enhance their counter fraud response by ensuring that it is comprehensive and 
effective and focused on the key changes that will make the most difference. 

 
6. Counter fraud response should be considered against each six key themes: -  

 Culture  

 Capability  

 Capacity  

 Competence  

 Communication  

Page 39

https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally


 
  

 Collaboration  

 
7. The following pages set out the expected response from a local authority, and our 
assessment of Torridge‟s arrangements against expectations. 

  
 

CIPFA expected Local Authority 

response to the risk of fraud and 
corruption. 

Torridge current position and action 

1. The local authority has made a proper 
assessment of its fraud and corruption risks, 

has an action plan to deal with them and 
regularly reports to its senior Board and its 
members. 

The Authority annually prepares a Fraud and 
Corruption risk register. This provides a 

systematic identification of the risks and 
controls to address these risks. The latest 
version was prepared in December 2021. It 

includes consideration of the fraud risk related 
to Government Grants, which is a high-risk 
area for the public service.  

Th risk register is subject to review by the 
Senior Management Team. 

The Corporate Risk Register, which includes 
the Fraud risks, is taken to the Audit & 
Governance Committee. 

2. The local authority has undertaken a 

fraud risk assessment against the risks and 
has also undertaken horizon scanning of 

future potential fraud and corruption risks. 
This assessment includes the 
understanding of the harm that fraud may 
do in the community 

Yes. 

The fraud risks to the Authority are assessed at 

least annually and are updated as and when 
new risks arise. 

In terms of horizon scanning, internal audit 

(DAP) provide updates on emerging fraud risks 
and the Devon Audit Group also helps to inform 
officers of locally developing issues. 

A local network of key contacts also helps to 
identify trends and developments. 

3. There is an annual report to the audit 

committee, or equivalent detailed 
assessment, to compare against FFCL 
2020 and this checklist.  

Yes.  

Each year a report is taken to the Audit & 

Governance Committee, reporting the results of 
a self-assessment (this document) against the 

CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk 
of Fraud and corruption. 

4. The relevant portfolio holder has been 
briefed on the fraud risks and mitigation 

 The Chair of the Audit & Governance 
Committee will be briefed on fraud risks and 
the mitigations thereof. 

5. The audit committee supports counter 

fraud work and challenges the level of 
activity to ensure it is appropriate in terms of 
fraud risk and resources. 

Yes. 

The Audit & Governance Committee supports 

all officers in their work to prevent, detect and 
investigate fraud and corruption.  

Officers from partner organisations (e.g., 
Devon Audit Partnership) are used to provide 

specialist skills and additional resources as and 
when required for counter fraud activity. 

Page 40



 
  

6. There is a counter fraud and corruption 
strategy applying to all aspects of the local 

authority‟s business which has been 
communicated throughout the local 
authority and acknowledged by those 
charged with governance.  

Yes. 

The Authority has in place an Anti-Fraud, 
Corruption Bribery Policy and Strategy.  This 

was updated in October 2019, with the next 
review scheduled for 2022/23 or as required. 

The Strategy is taken to, and approved by, the 
Audit & Governance Committee. 

7. The local authority has arrangements in 

place that are designed to promote and 
ensure probity and propriety in the conduct 
of its business. 

Yes.  

Section 5 of the Strategy sets out various policy 

statements that cover staff, members, partner 
organisations and members of the public, 
which ensure probity and propriety are in place. 

However, no system or process can ever be 

100% secure, and so employee diligence is 
always needed, and this referred to in section 6 
“deterrence and prevention”. 

The Council includes anti-bribery clauses in 
contracts with third parties and agents. 

It also reports all procurement waivers to Audit 
& Governance Committee.  

8. The risks of fraud and corruption are 
specifically considered in the local 

authority‟s overall risk management 
process. 

Yes. 

The top fraud and corruption risks are included 
in the council‟s risk register. 

9. Counter fraud staff are consulted to 
fraud-proof new policies, strategies and 

initiatives across departments and this is 
reported upon to committee. 

The Authority does not have a dedicated 
“counter fraud” team. This role is instead 

undertaken by a range of officers, including the 
Finance Manager and by officers from Internal 
Audit (DAP). 

New policies and strategies are always 

considered in the light of possible fraud and 
corruption and are designed to limit such 
exposure. 

10. Successful cases of proven 

fraud/corruption are routinely publicised to 
raise awareness.  

Successful cases of proven fraud / corruption 
will be reported in the local paper. 

In addition, such cases will be referred to in the 
internal newsletter and the Members Bulletin. 

11. The local authority has put in place 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud 

and corruption and a mechanism for 
ensuring that this is effective and is reported 
to committee.  

Systems are designed to prevent fraud 
occurring. The diligence of management and 
staff is also key in this. 

A risk assessment is undertaken of the key 
risks of fraud, and the controls in place to 
prevent this taking place. 

The annual Internal Audit plan is prepared 

taking in to account risks, which include fraud 
risks. Internal audit will provide assessment on 

the effectiveness of controls, and test controls 
to ensure that they are being complied with in 
practice. 

Page 41

https://torridge.gov.uk/media/23851/Anti-Fraud-Corruption-Bribery-Strategy/pdf/Anti_Fraud__Corruption___Bribery_Strategy_20191.pdf?m=637729164383470000
https://torridge.gov.uk/media/23851/Anti-Fraud-Corruption-Bribery-Strategy/pdf/Anti_Fraud__Corruption___Bribery_Strategy_20191.pdf?m=637729164383470000


 
  

The Audit and Governance Committee is given 
reports on risk, and the results of Internal Audit, 

and this, combined with management 
assessment of controls, is summarised in the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

The Strategy at 5.9 refers to “any major 

instances of fraud will be reported to the next 
Audit & Governance Committee.” 

12. The local authority has put in place 
arrangements for monitoring compliance 

with standards of conduct across the local 
authority covering:  

 

– codes of conduct including behaviour for 

counter fraud, anti-bribery and corruption  

Yes.  

The Strategy, section 6.9 to 6.14 refers to the 

code of conduct for staff and at 6.15 to 6.17 the 
code of conduct for members. 

There is a member‟s code of conduct that was 

prepared in August 2018 and updated in 2020. 
The Standards Committee of the Council is 

responsible for overseeing the conduct of 
District Councillors and Parish / Town Councils 
within the district.  

 

– register of interests  Member interests are detailed under each 
Councillors profile under “Your Councillors” on 

the council website.  

– register of gifts and hospitality.  Yes. 

A register of gifts and hospitality is maintained, 
and this is published online. 

See: https://torridge.gov.uk/article/20504/Gifts-
and-Hospitality-Register 
 

13. The local authority undertakes 

recruitment vetting of staff prior to 
employment by risk assessing posts and 

undertaking the checks recommended in 
FFCL 2020 to prevent potentially dishonest 
employees from being appointed.  

TDC have two policies; „recruitment‟ and 

„employment screening‟ which cover the 
employee vetting.  All offers of employment are 
subject to satisfactory pre-employment checks.   

Mandatory checks include: - 

 References  

 Verification of employment history 

 Verification of professional qualifications 
and memberships  

 Verification of ID, nationality and 
immigration status and right to work in 
the UK  

 Medical clearance 
 

Some posts require additional checks including 

 Disclosure Barring Services 

 Credit checks 

 Checks on company directorships held, 

Page 42

https://torridge.gov.uk/article/20504/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register
https://torridge.gov.uk/article/20504/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register


 
  

resigned, or disqualified from (not 
routinely undertaken) 

14. Members and staff are aware of the 

need to make appropriate disclosures of 
gifts, hospitality and business. This is 

checked by auditors and reported to 
committee.  

Yes. 

At the start of each meeting a declaration of 
interests is requested. 

The Communications Team will remind all 
officers and members of the need to declare all 

offers of gifts and hospitality. Such a reminder 
is made in the internal newsletter. 

15. There is a programme of work to ensure 
a strong counter fraud culture across all 
departments and delivery agents led by 
counter fraud experts.  

There is an annual calendar that supports the 
staff newsletter to ensure that fraud awareness 
updates are provided at least biannually, 

whistleblowing reminders are provided 
biannually, and gift & hospitality reminders are 
provided yearly. 

16. There is an independent whistle-blowing 

policy which is monitored for take-up and 
can show that suspicions have been acted 
upon without internal pressure. 

Yes. 

A separate Whistleblowing policy is in place 
and was updated in January 2020. 
This details how employees, members, 

contractors, suppliers of goods and services 
and agency staff can raise concerns, and how 

they will the council will respond.  
 

17. Contractors and third parties sign up to 
the whistle-blowing policy and there is 

evidence of this. There should be no 
discrimination against whistle-blowers. 

The whistleblowing policy applies to staff of 
Council contractors, suppliers of goods and 
services and agency staff. 

 

18. Fraud resources are assessed 
proportionately to the risk the local authority 
faces and are adequately resourced. 

Since the transfer of benefits counter fraud staff 
to Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), 
fraud resources have been limited. 

The internal audit provider (DAP) has a 

Counter Fraud Team working from Plymouth. 
The team has fully trained and qualified counter 

fraud specialists. The Authority will look to “call 
off” resources as and when the need arises.  

19. There is an annual fraud plan which is 
agreed by committee and reflects resources 
mapped to risks and arrangements for 

reporting outcomes. This plan covers all 
areas of the local authority‟s business and 

includes activities undertaken by contractors 
and third parties or voluntary sector 
activities. 

There is no annual fraud plan as such. 

However, there are a range of “work 
programmes” prepared each year, including 
actions arising for the Annual Governance 

Review process, Risk Management, and 
Internal Audit. 

The elements of each of these various plans 

enables senior management to be assured that 
suitable resources are being allocated to 
prevent, detect and investigate fraud. 

However, it should be noted that the current 

level of referrals of fraud and corruption are 
limited. 

20. Statistics are kept and reported by the 
fraud team which cover all areas of activity 

The Strategic Improvement Officer, in 
conjunction with the S151 officer, will maintain 

Page 43

https://torridge.gov.uk/media/23852/Whistleblowing-Policy/pdf/Whistleblowing_Policy_2020.pdf?m=637729164078470000


 
  

and outcomes.  a record of referrals. 

However, and as referred to above, there is no 
separate fraud team. 

21. Fraud officers have unfettered access to 
premises and documents for the purposes 
of counter fraud investigation.  

As stated above there are no dedicated “fraud 
officers”.  

However, to support counter fraud 

investigations appropriate access would be 
granted. For example, if DAP were asked to 

conduct an investigation using their Counter 
Fraud Team, then “full access” would be 
granted as per the service level agreement 
already in place.  

22. There is a programme to publicise fraud 

and corruption cases internally and 
externally which is positive and endorsed by 
the council‟s communication team.  

Not a programme as such, but cases will be 

publicised in the local newspaper and via the 
internal newsletter and the Members bulletin. 

23. All allegations of fraud and corruption 
are risk assessed.  

Yes. Each referral or suspicion will be “risk 

assessed” before embarking upon a course of 
action proportionate to the issue and in line 
with Torridge‟s “zero tolerance” policy. 

24. The fraud and corruption response plan 

covers all areas of counter fraud work:  

 Prevention 

 Detection 

 Investigation 

 Sanctions 

 Redress 

As mentioned above, there is no response plan 

as such, however the Strategy ensures that 
each of these elements is considered. 

25. The fraud response plan is linked to the 
audit plan and is communicated to senior 
management and members.  

See above 

26. Asset recovery and civil recovery is 
considered in all cases. 

Yes.  Section 7.9 to 7.12 of the Strategy deal 
with Sanctions and Redress. 

27. There is a zero-tolerance approach to 

fraud and corruption which is always 
reported to committee. 

Yes. There is a “zero tolerance approach to 

fraud, endorsed by the Audit & Governance 
Committee.  

Instances of fraud and corruption are reported 

to the Audit & Governance Committee. Due to 
the sensitive nature of some instances, this 
may be in summary form. 

28. There is a programme of proactive 

counter fraud work which covers risks 
identified in assessment.  

Proactive counter fraud work is delivered in a 

variety of ways each year. Some examples of 
how this is achieved include: - 

 Participation in the bi-annual National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) 

 Elements of internal audit work focused on 

controls that may be more susceptible to 
fraud risk 

 Work by Service Managers – such as 

Council Tax Single Persons Discount 

Page 44



 
  

review 

 

29. The fraud team works jointly with other 
enforcement agencies and encourages a 
corporate approach and co-location of 
enforcement activity.  

There is no “fraud team” as such, however 
early referral to the Police or other agencies will 
be considered as part of the risk assessment 
for each referral. 

30. The local authority shares data across 

its own departments and between other 
enforcement agencies.  

Yes, and as expected. 

The main external data sharing is via the 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI). 

31. Prevention measures and projects are 

undertaken using data analytics where 
possible.  

Yes. 

Such examples include making good use of  

 the NFI 

 Council Tax - Single persons discount 
review 

32. The local authority actively takes part in 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and 
promptly takes action arising from it.  

Yes. 

Data is submitted every two years, with 
“matches” then investigated in accordance with 
the scoring of the match (e.g., higher scored 

matches reviewed first, lowest reviewed last 
and in accordance with resources available). 

33. There are professionally trained and 
accredited staff for counter fraud work. If 

auditors undertake counter fraud work, they 
too must be trained in this area.  

As mentioned earlier, the Authority does not 
have a counter fraud team. However, the 

Authority has access to, and will make use of, 
Counter Fraud Specialists as and when the 
need arises. 

For example, the Counter Fraud Team of DAP 
are available to assist as and when required. 

34. The counter fraud team has adequate 
knowledge in all areas of the local authority 
or is trained in these areas.  

As above. 

35. The counter fraud team has access 
(through partnership/other local 

authorities/or funds to buy in) to specialist 
staff for:  

 Surveillance 

 Computer forensics 

 Asset recovery 

 Financial investigations. 

As above. 

36. Weaknesses revealed by instances of 

proven fraud and corruption are scrutinised 
carefully and fed back to departments to 
fraud proof systems. 

Yes. 

The Authority is committed to ongoing and 
continual improvement. Any weaknesses 
identified will be addressed wherever possible, 

although it should be noted that no system can 
ever be considered 100% free from the risk of 

fraud. 
 

 
 
 

Page 45



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Audit Partnership 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: January 2022   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the internal audit 
reports issued since the last Audit and Governance Committee to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of internal audit reports 
issued. This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the internal audit report upon release, they are encouraged to 
raise any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary report 
gives an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final internal audit reports issued to date that have not been previously 
reported to the Committee.  

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are five audit reports to note: 
 

 Payroll 

 Corporate Health and Safety 

 Harbour Services 

 Recruitment, Selection and Retention 

 Emergency Planning 

 

  
  

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

Equality/Diversity 
None. 
 
 
Risk Management 

The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by 
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include „opportunity‟ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived 
to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during 
the draft audit stage. 
 
Reporting of progress to the Audit & Governance Committee to implement internal audit actions is 
the responsibility of the Finance Director / S151. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit Committee terms of reference and the Audit Procedures 
Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that 
have been awarded each level: 
 

Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

Payroll 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Corporate Health and Safety; 
Recruitment Selection and 
Retention; Emergency Planning 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

Harbour Services 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: 
 

Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the internal audits in this report. 

Page 47



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

 Consultations:  
 

Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
Paul Middlemass – DAP Audit Manager 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 48



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports Issued but not previously reported to Committee 

 

Payroll 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 1 (1 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed - 1 
 
Summary 

We consider the control environment relating to the payroll system to be robust. Based on our tests, 
the transfer of payroll to the iTrent system has not impacted on the high level of control found in our 
previous audit. Access of users to the iTrent system was found to be appropriately controlled. Starter 
and leaver information sampled was being accurately recorded and calculated upon the system. An 
appropriate suite of exception reports is run monthly. Parameter data was checked back to gov.uk 
documentation and found to be accurately recorded upon the system. The iTrent system provides 
additional self-serve functionality for Council staff which has efficiency benefits in reducing the manual 
interventions on the payroll system. We also reviewed the business continuity arrangements for the 
new system and found them for purpose, with appropriate arrangements in the event of the un-
expected absence of the main payroll officer. 
 
No recommendations were made in our previous internal audit report covering the previous system in 
operation. Only one „Low‟ recommendation has been made in this report relating to the need to 
remove „access‟ rights from ex-employees who terminated their employ several months previously.       
 

Corporate Health and Safety 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 5 (2 Medium, 3 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 5 
 
Summary    

The Council has a sound system in place to manage its Health and Safety responsibilities. There is a 
good, experienced H&S team who are well organised, although some additional resource is needed to 
support the return to office. A management review in early 2016 resulted in the team moving under the 
Environmental Health and Community Safety Manager who has helped standardise procedures and 
documents. The Service Manager is qualified with the Institute of Occupational Safety and Health, and 
the Lead Licensing Officer has a diploma in National Examination Board in Occupational Safety and 
Health. Health and Safety risks are discussed monthly at Operational Management Team meetings 
and the quarterly Corporate Risk Register meetings. 

The team subsequently had to manage the rapidly changing work environment of staff brought on by 
the pandemic. Understandably, many office-based risks were negated when the workforce relocated 
to working from home (where possible). A big exercise was undertaken to ensure that staff were 
taking appropriate measures to make their new environment as safe as possible with completion of 
Display Screen Equipment and remote/lone working self-assessments, supported by a staff survey. 

However, several office related routine checks (i.e., fire extinguisher checks) have slipped past their 
normal review dates because of limited staffing to undertake them. The Corporate Health & Safety 

Page 49



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

Policy is overdue for its annual review by 14 months. That said, 22 of the 24 supporting guidance and 
process documents were up to date with only minor updates required on the other 2. The team are 
prioritising addressing these to catch-up, and the Fire Risk Assessments were being worked on during 
our audit (subsequently received by the time of this report). However, both have other responsibilities 
which have taken priority since the last audit.  and the Council should look at future resourcing to 
ensure there is sufficient capacity going forward.  
 
Harbour Services 

 
Overall Assurance Level – Limited 
 
No of recommendations – 6 (1 High, 5 Medium) 
 
No of recommendations agreed - 6 
 
Summary 
 

Personnel issues due to illness with key harbour personnel in the last couple of years have impacted 
on effective management of the harbour service. This includes weak management of records, such as 
invoices; maintenance of assets; costings; health and safety related checks. Since the beginning of 
the year great efforts have been made to piece together these records, working practices and 
ensuring continuous service despite the challenges brought about by the pandemic. An action plan 
has recently created to make improvements and resolve identified issues, led by the interim Harbour 
Master who has significant experience in this area. This plan is comprehensive and appears to 
address the significant areas of weakness. The plan has been provided to the Harbour Board and will 
be discussed by Community and Resources Committee. Our recommendations in the report 
complement this action plan. 

The interim Harbour Master intends to step down in Spring 2022 but has committed to stay “as long as 
required” to ensure an appropriate replacement is in position and to provide a comprehensive hand 
over. That said, it is important that the current recruitment action is taken forward effectively. The 
Harbour Master is also now supported by a Harbour Officer who has recently been physically based 
on-site in the Harbour Master‟s Office in Bideford providing administrative services and face to face 
cover to patrons of the Harbour. She is helping coordinate activity between the remote working 
Harbour Master and Service Manager and is helping to deal with the issues that need to be 
addressed. 

New services have been introduced this year to increase income including short-term mooring for 
visitors to Bideford. This has yielded positive results however the invoicing arrangements are 
cumbersome and not suitable for quick invoicing purposes were there to be an increase in volume. We 
see this as an opportunity to reduce administration by utilising more efficient payment processes. A 
review of Harbour services is being undertaken by the Harbour Master with a view to aligning the 
charges and increasing income that way, as charges may not reflect the market rate of other peer 
ports. This benchmarking review should also establish if there are other users who could be charged 
to help pay for the infrastructure that they use i.e., water-sport users of the slipway or steps. 

The Council has a harbour and pilotage service which supports two major clients, the MS Oldenburg 
Lundy Island ferry, and the Celtic Forester clay ship (Evans Transport invoiced) but this operates at an 
annual lossThe port adds strategic benefits to the local economy with visitors coming to use the ferry 
up to 4 times a week and to see the clay ship visit once a quarter. Economic conditions beyond the 
Council‟s control have been responsible for the drop in turnover (after the loss of the log transport 
operation) from c.£100k per annum prior to 2018 to c.£50k in 2019.Against an average budget of 
c.£150k, losses have averaged c.£84.5k per annum for the last 4 years. Given that perspective, and 
the inherent risks in this area, the Council should continue to annually review the strategic and tactical 
business management issues related to the harbour and pilotage service. The consideration of this 
loss should be set against the recent absence of effort or focus to develop new harbour cargo 

Page 50



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

6 
 

business streams which for the sake of one ship calling at the port every month, could possibly 
change the harbour from an economic liability to a modest source of employment, economic activity 
and income. 
 
 

Recruitment, Selection and Retention 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 3 (1 Medium, 2 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 1 
 
Summary    

The Council has an effective process to manage the recruitment and induction of staff, supported by 
their new HR system (I-Trent). The introduction of I-Trent has made the Recruitment and Selection 
process more efficient in many ways. This includes benefits related to enforcing a workflow for the 
recruitment process, reducing the need for papers, and holding an audit trail of the recruitment 
process.  

The HR staff provide good support to managers when recruiting and inducting staff, and have 
supported tactical opportunities to recruit, such as recruitment fairs. These have helped reduce 
problems in recruiting locally, although challenges continue in some job areas. The Recruitment Policy 
is well written, effective and in line with legislation. The Selection process was described in detail 
within the policies provided by the authority. We were content that the overall start to end recruitment 
process (consideration of the need to recruit, budget approval; creation of the job details; advertising 
the post; sifting, interviewing, selection) were in line with good practice to ensure fair and open 
recruitment. 

There was no retention policy available to view, but during interviews we confirmed the Council had 
measures to encourage staff to remain. The Authority also demonstrated they had suitable privacy 
notices to protect the personal data involved in Recruitment, Retention and Selection work.  

While we have given Reasonable Assurance, implementation of their new training system to deliver 
periodic uptake of core training would likely increase this to a Substantial Assurance. 
 

Emergency Planning 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 4 (4 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 4 
 
Summary    

The Council is meeting its core responsibilities as described in the Civil Contingencies Act.  It has a 
core Emergency Plan and a Business Continuity Plan, albeit they require review and update, including 
to detail the transfer of management responsibility to the Public Health and Housing Manager.  There 
is also a need to recruit the additional officer to support this manager (who will also have a role in 
supporting council Health and Safety).  As the Emergency Plan is a statutory requirement, we have 
suggested that it be endorsed by the Lead member for Emergency Planning and the role of Members 
in the event of any emergency should also be considered.  We have also suggested inclusion of a 
policy on testing of the Plan to ensure preparedness is maintained, although we acknowledge that real 
world events have negated the necessity for testing over the last two years.  As well as the C-19 
pandemic events actions have included responding to the Bucks Mill Container Grounding event in 

Page 51



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

7 
 

October 2020. The central plan is supplemented by other relevant plans. A variety of other plans such 
as the Bideford Harbour oil spill contingency plan exist, and these align to the relevant risks in the 
area.   

The Council is well supported in its responsibilities by the Devon Emergency Planning Partnership 
(DEPP) and the Local Resilience Forum (LRF), with which it has active engagement to its best 
endeavours. Those organisations provide significant support to the council to help it manage any 
emergency incident that arises. The DEPP provides actively help in developing and discussing plans 
and recovery arrangements with its partners. The LRF supports active discussion with partners 
(including the council) of national and local risks to support consideration of the Emergency Plans that 
are required. Separately, there is also much attention on coastal erosion and flooding coordinated by 
the Environment Agency which has prompted focus by the Council in this high-risk area.     

Page 52



Audit  
Agreed 

Actions 
Open Late Complete

Income Processing 2020/21 3 0 1 2

Housing Renewals 2020/21 10 1 1 8

Creditors 2020/21 2 1 0 1

NNDR 2020/21 8 1 0 7

Main Accounting System 2020/21 0 0 0 0

Safeguarding 2021/22 5 0 0 5

Housing Benenfits 2020/21 0 0 0 0

Equality & Diversity 2021/22 3 0 2 1

Risk Management 2021 9 1 1 7

Car Parking 2021/22 9 1 0 8

Cemeteries 2021/22 8 4 2 2

Debtors 2021/22 5 0 2 3

Payroll 2021/22 1 1 0 0

Health & Saftey 2021/22 5 2 0 3

Homeworking 2021/22 11 9 2 0

Harbours 2021/22 6 4 1 1

Emergency Planning 2021/22 4 4 0 0

Recruitment 2021/22 3 1 0 2

Totals 92 30 12 50

33% 13% 54%

Audit Reports Published in 2021

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



Area Agreed Action Officer Target Date Status Comments for Late Actions

High / 

Medium / 

Low / 

Oppurtunity

Port Facility 

Security PLan

A port facility securioty officer and 

deputy are appointed and attend the 

necessary 4 days PFSO course

Harbour Master Nov-21 Late
Attendance at the course has been booked for March 2022; in the meantime the 

harbour master at Illfracombe is covering the PFSO function
High

Multi Factor 

Authentication
Enable MFA on Outlook Web Access James Jewell Dec-21 Late 50% complete, delayed by working from home directive High

Backup 

arrangements of 

Cemetery Pro

This is an unacceptable risk and 

warrants further investigation to 

remedy as a priority. 

Tom Phillips Oct-21 Late

This cloud based system is still not backed up on our systems.  However, all 

records entered in to Cemetery Pro remain recorded by our normal 

processes including hard copies stored in locked and fire proof safe, and 

scanned copies saved on our systems.  Therefore Cemetery Pro does not 

contain any information that is not stored in another format (and therefore 

backed up elsewhere).  Cemetery Pro have been contacted to establish 

whether the data can be exported from the system – if Torridge IT systems 

cannot backup Cemetery Pro directly then once we are in a position for this to 

be our principal database we will have a system of periodic (eg once a week) 

download of data files to be saved on to our systems and therefore backed 

up.  

Medium

IT Asset Register

Investigate the export issue identified 

to esnure that there are no wider 

implications. Check the asset register 

to confirm all fields are complete.

James Jewell Sep-21 Late
New central asset register currently being populated. Recent work from home 

directive has delayed this somewhat
Medium

Annual Reporting 

Requirement for 

E&D

Annual review will be carried out and 

a report will be published to meet 

statutory requirements for 2020/21 

and thereafter

Staci Dorey Dec-21 Late This has been delayed by lack of resources Medium

E&D Training

Face to face training on Equality & 

Diversity will be implemented once 

lockdown restrictions are lifted.

Sarah Ayres Oct-21 Late
Restrictions have not been lifted, but on line training has been undertaken for all 

staff
Medium

Independent 

member of A&G

We will continue in our independent 

efforts to recruit a suitable candidate. 

We are also working on this with DAP 

who are intending to identity a suitable 

pool of candidates for deployment 

within the region.

David Heyes Sep-21 Late DAP are still trying to recruit a suitably qualified individual Medium

HMO's on IDOX

Additional team capacity has been put 

in place, with further capacity being 

considered. This increased level of 

staff resources should help to address 

the issues raised.

Janet Williams Oct-21 Late Recently recruited apprentices will undertake this task in the new year Medium

3DS2 Security 

Compliance

Capita will be updating the 

infrastructure, with input from TDC IT.
Steve Burgess Jun-21 Late

The Council is in the process of bringing in 3DS2 security as part of an upgrade. 

The Council is waiting on Capita to resolve the latest API so that it can swap the 

Granicus Forms system over to the new system.  The actual BACS deadline has 

been moved back into 2022. Further movement on this action is dependant upon 

third parties namely Capita and Central Government

Medium

Debtor invoices to be fully detailed, 

considering the issues raised.

Reminder to be circulated via the staff 

newsletter, regarding the need for fully 

detailed VAT invoices.

Recovery process

We will ensure that case notes are 

updated from time to time as evidence 

that they are being actively monitored 

and pursued

Karina Baird Aug-21 Late As part of the new debtors clerks induction this task will be undertaken low

Manual burial 

registers

 Prior to migration to Cemetery Pro, a 

scanned copy of the new pages in the 

manual entry would provide some 

additional cover.

Caddsdown 

Reception
Sep-21 Late

Scanning of the paperwork is ongoing, gradually working our way through the 

old burials, all new burials are scanned in and entered on Cemetery Pro as they 

occur.  Caddsdown estimate 30% progress on the historic records migration.
Opportunity

lowDebtors Invoices Karina Baird Aug-21 Late
The Debtors Manager has returned to work after an extended period of sickness 

and an article will be included in the next staff newsletter 

P
age 54



Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Code of Governance 

Date: 18th January 2022 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

It is necessary for the Council to carry out an annual review of its Corporate Governance 
arrangements. A revised Code of Governance is attached for consideration. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2011) requires the Council to conduct 
a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its Annual Governance Statement.   

 

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance, and the 
revised Code is at Appendix A. 
 

2. REPORT 

The Code of Corporate Governance is derived from work undertaken by the Independent 
Commission on Good Governance in Public Service – a commission set up by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Office for Public 
Management. The Commission utilised work done by, amongst others, Cadbury (1992), 
Nolan (1995) and CIPFA/SOLACE (2001). The Commission identified six core principles 
which were published in 2004, in a publication entitled ‘The Good Governance Standard for 
Public Services’. A revised Framework was developed by the CIPFA/SOLACE Joint working 
Group on Good Governance in Local Government in 2015 and the group’s conclusions are 
set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English 
Authorities 2016. The framework has seven core principles which emphasise the 
importance of considering the longer term and the links between governance and public 
financial management – all key considerations for local authorities in today’s climate.   
 
The seven core principles are: 

 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law; 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits ; 
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes; 
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it; 
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management; and 
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective 

accountability 
 

The Council strives to meet the highest standards of corporate governance to help ensure it 
meets its objectives. Members and Senior Officers are responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 
resources at its disposal.  
 
 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



This Code of Corporate Governance describes what the Council will do to meet each of the key 
principles of good governance. 
 
The effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements is published each year in our Annual 
Governance Statement. As part of the governance monitoring process a database is maintained to 
evidence the extent to which the Council is meeting each principle of good governance.   
 
The following table summarises our current year (2021/22) assessment of the effectiveness of the 
Council’s governance arrangements:  

 

PRINCIPLE A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 

A.1 Behave with integrity. 100% 

A.2 Demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values 100% 

A.3 Respect the rule of law 100% 

PRINCIPLE B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 

B.1 Be Open 100% 

B.2 Engage comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 100% 

B.3 Engage with individual citizens and service users effectively 95% 

PRINCIPLE C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

C.1 Define Outcomes 100% 

C.2 Provide sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 100% 

PRINCIPLE D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes 

D.1 Determine Interventions 100% 

D.2 Plan interventions 100% 

D.3 Optimise achievement of intended outcomes 100% 

PRINCIPLE E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it 

E.1 Develop the entity’s capacity 90% 

E.2 Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals  100% 

PRINCIPLE F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control 
and strong public financial management 

F.1 Manage risk 100% 

F.2 Have strong public financial management 100% 

F.3 Manage performance 100% 

F.4 Have robust internal controls 95% 

F.5 Manage Data 100% 

PRINCIPLE G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit 
to deliver effective accountability 

G.1 Implement good practice in transparency 100% 

G.2 Implement good practices in reporting 100% 

G.3 Provide assurance and effective accountability 100% 

 
The Audit and Governance Committee has the option to review and challenge sections of the 
supporting evidence database. 
 
 
 
 

 Page 56



3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Legal Implications 
There is a legal requirement to have an Annual Governance Statement as part of the 
approval of the annual statement of accounts. 
 

Financial Implications 
None 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None 
 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
N/A 
 

Equality/Diversity 
An Equality Impact Assessment was prepared for the original Code of Governance. 
 

Risk Management 
There is a reputational risk to the Council if it does not comply with its Code of Governance 
and this must be kept up to date. There is an underlying risk that governance arrangements 
are not implemented, monitored, and reviewed in accordance with best practise. 
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Approval and adoption of the Code of Governance is a key aspect of demonstrating that 
Torridge District Council has a formal and established response to the Corporate 
Governance requirements. 
 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
The Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee said “Each year the Committee scrutinises 
the Council’s governance arrangements. The core principles provided by CIPFA/SOLACE 
help us to focus on the key areas which need to be covered to ensure we carry out our 
business within an open and robust governance framework. “ 
 

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance, and the 
revised Code is at Appendix A. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that the revised Code of Corporate Governance be approved. 

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Officers Consulted - SMT 

Members Consulted – Councillor Philip Hackett  
 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
 

 
Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer 

 Background Papers: The CIPFA/SOLACE: Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. 
Torridge AGS Evidence Database 
The CIPFA/SOLACE: ‘Delivering Good Governance Addendum’, 
produced jointly in 2012 
The CIPFA/SOLACE: ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework’, produced jointly in 2007 

 
 Page 57



Code of Corporate
Governance - 2022

Issue Number 16

Approved Audit & Governance Committee

Approval Date 18 January 2022

Next Review Date January 2023

P
age 58



2

C. Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 
environmental benefits

D.  Determining the 
interventions necessary to 

optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes

F.  Managing risks and 
performance through robust 
internal control and strong 

public financial management

G.  Implementing good 
practices in transparency, 

reporting, and audit, to 
deliver effective 
accountability

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement

What is Corporate Governance?

In the public sector Good Governance means: "Achieving the Intended Outcomes While Acting in the Public Interest at all Times”. 

Corporate governance generally refers to the processes by which an organisation is directed, controlled, led and held to account. Torridge 

District Council’s governance framework aims to ensure that in conducting its business it:

✓ operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner

✓ makes sure public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and spent wisely

✓ has effective arrangements in place to manage risk

✓ meets the needs of Torridge communities - secures continuous improvements in the way it operates.

Our governance framework comprises of the culture, values, systems and processes by which the Council is directed and controlled. It brings 

together an underlying set of legislative and regulatory requirements, good practice principles and management processes, as set out in 

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016 (CIPFA/SOLACE).

The diagram on the right illustrates how the various 

principles for good governance in the public sector 

relate to each other. 

Principles A and B flow into the implementation of 

principles C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good 

governance is dynamic, and that an organisation should 

be committed to improving governance on a continuing 

basis through a process of evaluation and review.

Torridge District Council strives to meet the 

highest standards of corporate governance to 

help ensure it meets its objectives. Members and 

Senior Officers are responsible for putting in 

place proper arrangements for the governance of 

the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 

resources at its disposal. This Code of 

Corporate Governance describes what the 

Council will do in 2022/23 to meet each of the 

seven principles of good governance.

Each year the Council undertakes a review of its 

corporate governance arrangements, and at the 

end of each year produces an Annual 

Governance Statement which outlines the 

effectiveness of the Code of Governance and its 

application, suggesting areas for improvement 

and recommendations as appropriate.

E  Developing the entity’s 
capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it 

P
age 59



Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use the resources 

under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have

achieved. In addition, they have an overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of 

legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of all their 
actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law. 

We will:

Behave with integrity.

We will do this by:

 Ensuring Members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly and 

consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation

 Ensuring Members take the lead in establishing specific operating principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that 

they are communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles)

 Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other 

actions

 Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and 

processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively.

We will:

Respect the rule of law

We will do this by:

 Ensuring Members and staff  demonstrate a strong commitment to 

the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and 

regulations

 Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other 

key post holders, and Members, are able to fulfil their 

responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory 

requirements

 Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the 

benefit of its citizens, communities and other stakeholders

 Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively 

 Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively.

We will:

Demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values

We will do this by:

 Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 

organisation’s ethical standards and performance

 Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and 

ensuring they permeate all aspects of the organisation’s 

culture and operation

 Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures 

which place emphasis on agreed ethical values

 Ensuring that external providers of service on behalf of the 

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 

compliance with ethical standards expected by the 

organisation.
3

Principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the rule of law

P
age 60



Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure openness in their activities. Clear, trusted 

channels of communication and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as 

individual citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders.

We will:

Be Open

We will do this by:

 Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 

communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness 

 Making decisions that are  open about actions, plans, resource use, 

forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that 

is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 

confidential should be provided  

 Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records 

and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, 

rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact 

and consequences of those decisions are clear

 Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the 

most appropriate and effective interventions/courses of action.

We will:

Engage with individual citizens and service 

users effectively

We will do this by:

 Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues 

that the organisation will meaningfully consult 

with or involve  communities, individual 

citizens, service users and other stakeholders 

to ensure that service (or other) provision is 

contributing towards the achievement of 

intended outcomes. 

 Ensuring that communication methods are 

effective and that Members and officers are 

clear about their roles with regard to 

community engagement

 Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the 

views and experiences of communities, 

citizens, service users  and organisations  of 

different backgrounds including reference to 

future use

 Implementing effective feedback mechanisms 

in order to demonstrate how views have been 

taken into account

 Balancing  feedback from more active 

stakeholder groups with other stakeholder 

groups to ensure inclusivity

 Taking account of the impact on future 

generations of tax payers and service users. 

We will:

Engage comprehensively with institutional stakeholders

We will do this by:

 Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders  to ensure that the 

purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder 

relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and 

sustainably

 Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be 

used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively 

 Ensuring that partnerships are based on: Trust; A Shared Commitment to 

Change; A Culture that Promotes and Accepts Challenge Among Partners; 

and that the added value of partnership working is explicit.
4

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

P
age 61



The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it should define and plan outcomes 

and that these should be sustainable. Decisions should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and 

outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including citizens,

service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in balancing competing demands when 

determining priorities for the finite resources available . 

We will:
Define Outcomes

We will do this by:

 Having a clear vision, which is in an agreed formal 

statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended 

outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, 

which provide the basis for the organisation’s overall 

strategy, planning and other decisions 

 Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including individual citizens and service 

users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year 

or longer

 Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within 

the resources that will be available

 Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 

outcomes 

Managing service users’ expectations effectively with 

regard to determining priorities and making the best use of  

the resources available.

We will:

Provide sustainable economic, social and environmental 

benefits

We will do this by:

 Considering and balancing the combined economic, social 

and environmental impact of policies and plans when 

taking decisions about service provision

 Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, 

taking account of risk and acting transparently where there 

are potential conflicts  between the organisation’s intended 

outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle 

or financial constraints

 Determining  the wider public interest associated with 

balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 

various economic, social and environmental benefits, 

through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 

appropriate trade-offs

 Ensuring fair access to services.

5

Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits

P
age 62



Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, and practical interventions 

(courses of action). Determining the right mix of these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that the

Council has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. The Council needs robust decision-making mechanisms to 

ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types of 

resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed frequently to 

ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised. 

We will:

Determine Interventions

We will do this by:

 Ensuring  decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a 

variety of options indicating how  intended outcomes would be achieved 

and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however 

services are provided

 Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making 

decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 

required in order to prioritise competing demands with limited resources 

available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind 

future impacts.

We will:

Optimise achievement of intended outcomes

We will do this by:

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances 

service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints

 Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the 

full cost of operations over the medium and longer term

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing 

decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the 

external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order 

for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage

 Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and 

commissioning.

We will:

Plan interventions

We will do this by:

 Establishing  and implementing robust planning and control 

cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities 

and targets 

 Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 

determining how services and other courses of action should 

be planned and delivered

 Monitoring and managing risks facing each partner when 

working collaboratively, including shared risks

 Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be 

adapted to changing circumstances

 Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) 

as part of the planning process in order to identify how the 

performance of services and projects is to be measured 

 Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required 

to review service quality regularly

 Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies 

and the medium term financial plan 

 Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy.

6

Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 

the intended outcomes

P
age 63



Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right skills, appropriate qualifications 

and mindset, to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local

government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are 

policies in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole. Because both

individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change over time, there will be a continuous need to 

develop its capacity as well as providing training to develop the skills and experience of individual staff members. Leadership in 

local government is strengthened by the participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the 

structure and diversity of communities. 

We will:

Develop the entity’s capacity

We will do this by:

 Reviewing operations, performance and use of 

assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing 

effectiveness

 Improving resource use through appropriate 

application of techniques such as benchmarking and 

other options in order to determine how resources 

are allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved 

effectively and efficiently

 Recognising the benefits of partnerships and 

collaborative working where added value can be 

achieved

 Developing and maintaining an effective workforce 

plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.  

We will:

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other 

individuals 

We will do this by:

 Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders 

negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on 

in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and 

objectives is maintained

 Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that 

are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision 

making of the governing body

 Ensuring the Leader and the Chief Executive have clearly defined 

and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the 

Chief Executive leads in implementing strategy and managing the 

delivery of services and other outputs set by Members and each 

provides a check and a balance for each other’s authority

Continued….

7

Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it

P
age 64



Continued…

We will:

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

Continued…

We will do this by:

 Developing the capabilities of Members and Senior Management to achieve effective leadership and to enable the 

organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental 

changes and risks by:

➢ Ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and 

development matching individual and organisational requirements is available and encouraged

➢ Identifying training needs to ensure Members and Senior Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge resources 

and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a 

continuing basis

➢ Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learned 

from governance weaknesses both internal and external

 Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation

 Taking steps to consider  the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive feedback from 

peer review and inspections

 Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs

 Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain  the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in 

maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 

8

Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it

P
age 65



Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it oversees have implemented, and 

can sustain, an effective performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. 

Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a performance management system and are crucial 

to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities.

A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the achievement of intended 

outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and accountability. 

It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of accountable decision making, policy

making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to 

successful scrutiny and successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires 

repeated public commitment from those in authority.

We will:

Manage risk

We will do this by:

 Recognising  that risk management is an integral part of all activities 

and must be considered in all aspects of decision making

 Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements 

and ensuring that they are working effectively

 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are 

clearly allocated. 

Note: Although we recognise that not all risks can be eliminated, we 

will ensure that we understand the impact of those risks and reduce 

them to an acceptable level over time. 

We will:

Have strong public financial management

We will do this by:

 Ensuring financial management supports both 

long term achievement of outcomes and short-

term financial and operational performance

 Ensuring well-developed financial management 

is integrated at all levels of planning and control, 

including management of financial risks and 

controls. 

9

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 

strong public financial management

P
age 66



10

Continued…

We will:

Have robust internal controls

We will do this by:

 Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal 

control with achieving objectives 

 Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal 

control on a regular basis

 Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements are in place

 Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal auditor

 Ensuring an audit committee which is independent of the 

executive and accountable to the governing body:

➢ Provides a further source of assurance regarding the 

authority’s arrangements for managing risk and 

maintaining an effective control environment

➢ And its recommendations are listened to and acted 

upon. 

We will:

Manage performance

We will do this by:

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review

Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the  implications and 

risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook

 Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in  

place which encourages effective and constructive 

challenge and debate on policies and objectives to 

support balanced and effective decision making 

 Providing Members and Senior Management with regular 

reports on service delivery plans and on progress 

towards outcome achievement 

 Ensuring there is consistency between specification 

stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 

reporting (e.g. financial statements). 

We will:

Manage Data

We will do this by:

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to 

safeguard personal data and preparations for compliance with the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) in May 2018. 

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies

 Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring. 

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 

strong public financial management

P
age 67



Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are answerable for them. Effective 

accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to 

understand and respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and 

internal audit contribute to effective accountability. 

We will:

Implement good practice in transparency

We will do this by:

 Writing and communicating reports for the 

public and other stakeholders in a fair, 

balanced and understandable style appropriate 

to the intended audience and ensuring that they 

are easy to access and interrogate

 Striking a balance between providing the right 

amount of information to satisfy transparency 

demands and enhance public scrutiny whilst 

not being too onerous to provide and for users 

to understand.

We will:

Provide assurance and effective accountability

We will do this by:

 Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by internal and external audit are acted upon

 Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place, providing assurance with regard to governance 

arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon

 Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations

 Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and this is evidenced in the annual governance 

statement

 Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need for wider public accountability has 

been recognised and met. 

We will:

Implement good practices in reporting

We will do this by:

 Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship of 

resources

 Ensuring Members and Senior Management own the results

 Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles 

contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the results on 

this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and evidence to 

demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance Statement)

 Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service 

organisations as appropriate 

 Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial 

statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements 

allow for comparison with other, similar organisations.

11

Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 

deliver effective accountability

P
age 68



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance

CEO

Monitoring 

Officer

Section 

151 OfficerEstates

Devon Audit 

Partnership

Grant 

Thornton

Human 

Resources

Legal 

Services

SMT/OMT

Decision 

Notices and 

MinutesO&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee

Standards 

Committee

Constitution

General 

Public

Members

Governance at Torridge : Key Functions

12

Strategy, 

Performance 

& ICT

Lead 

Members

P
age 69



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance
CEO

Monitoring 

Officer

Section 

151 

Officer
Estates

Devon 

Audit 

Partnership
Grant 

ThorntonHuman 

Resources

Legal 

Services

SMT/OMT

Grant Thornton

• Ensure economic, efficient, & effective 

public services

• Performance reports

• Financial reports

• VfM conclusions

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes
O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee

Standards 

Committee

Constitution

Scrutiny

• Independently review 

activities and decisions

• Review/develop policies

• Service reviews

General 

Public

Public Engagement

• Individual surgeries

• Town/Parish meetings

• Working parties

• Community groups

• Public consultations

Provide Assurance

• Risk management framework

• Control environment

• Performance Scrutiny

(financial & non-financial)

• Oversee financial reporting

• CIPFA compliance

Ethics

• Promote/maintain high 

standards

• Members code of conduct

• Investigate/report on 

breaches to the code

Members

Provide Assurance

• Produce Internal Audit Plan

• Execute Audit Plan

• Evaluate internal controls

• Regular reporting (A&G)

• Provide annual audit opinion

• Compliance with agreed polices & procedures

• Compliance with Accounts & Audit  Regs 2016

Standards

• Audit Practices Board,  CIPFA,  PSIAS,  IIA

Corporate Management

• Staff organisation

• Economic and effective delivery of 

Council objectives

• Compliance with section 4 of LG&H 

Act 1989

Deliver Services

• Strategic Plan and 

Business Plan actions

• Council policies 

• Assurance statements

• Risk Management

Financial Management

• Ensure financial implications, 

opportunities & risks are fully considered 

for all material business decisions

• Promote and deliver good financial 

management

• Safeguard public monies

• Comply with Section 151 of the Local 

Govt. Act 1972

• Risk Management  arrangements

Legal & Ethical Assurance

• Monitor ethical standards

• Members code of conduct

• Standards Committee

• Openness & transparency

• Compliance with section 5 of LG&H Act 

1989

• Compliance with Section 11 of Children 

Act 2004

• Date Security/Data Protection

• Prepare AGS and evidence

• Report writing protocol

• Member Induction, Training & Bulletin

Asset Management

• Control asset register

• Control property database

• Conditions survey

• Review property requirements

• Asset disposal

• Report to AMWG and C&R

• Recruitment & selection

• Job evaluation

• Person specification

• Induction process

• Meet identified training needs

• Control staff changes (GWAF)

• Annual appraisal system

• Customer Complaints

• Communications Strategy

• Staff newsletter

Governance:

Roles & 

Responsibilities

13

Strategy, 

Performance 

& ICT
• Update Strategic Plan

• Produce Business Plans & PIs

• Secure networks and data

Lead 

Members

Service Champions

• Improve decision making

• Continuous improvement

P
age 70



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer 

To: Audit & Governance 

Subject: Opt into the National Scheme for Auditor Appointments managed by PSAA 

as the “Appointing Person” 

Date: 18th January 2022 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

This report set out proposals for appointing the external auditor to audit the Authority‟s annual 
statement of accounts for a five year period from 2023/24.  

 
1. Background 

 

The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including the audit of the 

2022/23 accounts. The Council opted into the „appointing person‟ national auditor appointment 

arrangements established by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the 

accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23.  

PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering audits for 2023/24 to 

2027/28. During Autumn 2021 all local government bodies need to make important decisions about 

their external audit arrangements from 2023/24. Local Authorities have options to arrange their own 

procurement and make the appointment themselves or in conjunction with other bodies, or they can 

join and take advantage of the national collective scheme administered by PSAA. 

If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment arrangements, it is required 

under the local audit regulations to make the decision at full Council. The opt-in period starts on 22 

September 2021 and closes on 11 March 2022. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the 

Council needs to return completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 
 

2. Report 

 
Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the council is required to 

appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.  The council has three options;  

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the procedures in the Act.  

 To opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body designated by the 

Secretary of State as the „appointing person‟.  The body currently designated for this role is 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA).  

In order to opt in to the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a meeting of the Full 

Council.   

Page 71

Agenda Item 11



 
  

The Appointed Auditor  

The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the statutory audit of 

accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each financial year, in accordance with all 

relevant codes of practice and guidance.  The appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating 

questions raised by electors and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest 

Reports and statutory recommendations.   

The auditor must act independently of the council and the main purpose of the procurement 

legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently qualified and independent.  

The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) 

and employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the report below sets out there is 

a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key Audit Partners.  

Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider powers, the 

Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course of the next audit contract.  

Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services they are 

procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by third parties. 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly  

The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which would require the 

council to;  

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel 

would need to be set up by the Council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 

majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose 

are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and 

their close families and friends. This means that elected members will not have a majority input 

to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a contract for the Councils external 

audit.  

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel.  

Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a joint auditor 

panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent appointees. 

Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to 

the obligations of each Council under the Act and the Council would need to liaise with other local 

authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. No such appetite has been established 

within the Devon Local Authorities. 

The national auditor appointment scheme 

PSAA is specified as the „appointing person‟ for principal local government under the provisions of 

the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. PSAA let five-year audit services 

contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 

2022/23. It is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next 

appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a procurement for audit 

Page 72



 
  

services. PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose costs are around 4% of the scheme with any 

surplus distributed back to scheme members.  

In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of the five financial 
years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in formal collaboration or 
joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with other constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria are satisfied.  

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and managing any 
potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the opportunity to 
influence which auditor is appointed; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect scale, 
complexity, and audit risk; and 

 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these have been let. 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing opinions  

Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded in 2017. At that 

time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few changes in audit requirements, and 

local audit fees had been reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies eligible opted into the 

national scheme and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts 

took effect from 1 April 2018. 

During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to questioning 

about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four independent reviews were 

commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman‟s review of the Financial Reporting Council 

(FRC), the audit regulator; the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir 

Donald Brydon‟s review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond‟s review of 

local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now under 

consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant reforms will follow. A new 

audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and arrangements for system leadership in local audit 

are to be introduced. Further change will follow as other recommendations are implemented. 

The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, measurable 

improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for audit firms to ensure full 

compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations in every audit they undertake. By the 

time firms were conducting 2018/19 local audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in 

place to respond to a more focused regulator were clearly visible. To deliver the necessary 

improvements in audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to 

gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, posing a threat to 

the firms‟ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for publication of audited accounts. 

Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of the FRC‟s drive to improve audit quality. 

Page 73



 
  

Additional audit work must also be paid for. As a result, many more fee variation claims have been 

needed than in prior years.  

This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention challenges. These 

challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further significant 

pressure for finance and audit teams.  
 
None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges have played out in 
other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing responses to tender invitations have been 
experienced during the past two years.  

Page 74



 
  

The invitation 
PSAA is now inviting the Councils to opt in for the second appointing period, for 2023/24 to 2027/28, 
along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of opt-ins it will enter into contracts with 
appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint a suitable firm to be the Council‟s auditor.  

The next audit procurement 

The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key determinant of the value of 

audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA will: 

 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of scale associated with 

procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in accordance with the 

published fee scale as amended following consultations with scheme members and other 

interested parties (pooling means that everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices 

secured via a competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national collective scheme); 

  PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be able to bid 

for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their available resources and 

risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. They will be required to meet appropriate quality 

standards and to reflect realistic market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and 

the supporting information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train 

which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be informed as to 

which developments should be priced into their bids.  

  The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice (currently 

published by the National Audit Office)1, the format of the financial statements (specified by 

CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards regulated by the FRC. These factors 

apply to all local audits irrespective of whether an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA‟s 

national scheme or chooses to make its own separate arrangements. The requirements are 

mandatory; they shape the work auditors undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees 

required. 

 There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other relevant 

bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement exercise would seek 

tenders from the same firms as the national procurement exercise, subject to the need to 

manage any local independence issues. Local firms cannot be invited to bid. Local 

procurements must deliver the same audit scope and requirements as a national procurement, 

reflecting the auditor‟s statutory responsibilities. 

 
 

Assessment of options  

 If the Council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent auditor panel 

to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to be set up by the 

                                                 
 

Page 75



 
  

Council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent 

members as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent 

appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and their close 

families and friends. This means that elected members will not have a majority input to 

assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a contract for the Council‟s 

external audit.  

 Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a joint 

auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent 

appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such a panel 

having regard to the obligations of each Council under the Act and the Council would need 

to liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 

 These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the council, and 

without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to result in a 

more costly service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and independence 

requirements through a local appointment process. The council is unable to influence the 

scope of the audit and the regulatory regime inhibits the council‟s ability to affect quality.  

 The Council and its auditor panel would need to maintain ongoing oversight of the contract. 

Local contract management cannot, however, influence the scope or delivery of an audit. 

 The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with limited 

administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would be acting with 

other councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that a national procurement 

provides.    

The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme.   
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 

 Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant 

Council/Authority to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later 

than 31 December in the preceding year.  

 Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the Council/Authority must 

consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and appointment 

of a local auditor. Section 8 provides that where a relevant Council/Authority is a local 

council/authority operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local auditor 

to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the Council/Authority under 

those arrangements. 

 Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The Council/Authority 

must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the Council/Authority to 

appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the 

Council/Authority.  

Page 76



 
  

 Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation to an 

„appointing person‟ specified by the Secretary of State. This power has been exercised in the 

Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary of 

State the ability to enable a sector-led body to become the appointing person. In July 2016 

the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the appointing person. 
   
Financial Implications 
As detailed within the report 
 
Human Resources Implications 
Nothing specific from this report.  
 
Sustainability Implications 
n/a 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Nothing specific from this report. 
 
Risk Management 
The report highlights a number of areas where risks have been considered and actions 
adopted to mitigate financial risk.  
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This is associated with Torridge‟s Risk Strategy. 

  

Page 77



 
  

 
Leader Member Views 
Councillor Claire Hodson – 21st September 2021  

 
As the reports details the Council lacks the capacity and expertise to tender for audit 
services in isolation and it is very unlikely given the limited numbers of approved audit firms 
and the current state of the audit market that it would secure a better outcome than opting 
into the PSAA procurement process. There is no appetite across Devon to carry out a joint 
procurement exercise for audit services, which would be the only other practical option. 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 
The opt in to the PSAA procurement process is the only viable option available to the 
Council. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

 That members of the Committee recommend to Full Council that Torridge opts into the 
PSAA procurement of external audit services.  
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation –21st September 2021 

Officers Consulted –  
Chief Executive 
Head of Communities 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 

 Contact Officer: David Heyes– Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/22 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 

3 

Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 

8 

  27/7/21  05/10/21  18/01/22 29/03/22  
         

        

Audit 
Committee 

   
Effectiveness of 
A&G Committee 

 Appt. of Auditors – 

recommendation to 
then be taken to FC 

(DH) 

 

 

Risk 
Management 

 Corporate Risk    Corporate Risk Corporate Risk 
 

Internal Audit 

        

 Audit Report Issued  
Audit Report 

Issued 
 Audit Report Issued 

Audit Report 
Issued 

 

 
Progress with agreed 

actions 
 

Progress with 

agreed actions 
 

Progress with agreed 

actions 

Progress with 

agreed actions 

 

       
Draft Audit Plan 

2021/22 

 

Accounts 

 
Draft Statement of 

Accounts 
 

Presentation & 

Approval of 
Accounts & AGS 

 
Preparation for final 

account 
 

 

 
Annual Governance 

Statement 
 

Report on  
Going Concern 

  
 

 

   
Letter of  

Representation 

  
 

 

   
Final Annual 
Governance 

  
 

 

External 
Audit 

 Update Report    Update Report Update Report  

   
Audit Finding 

Report 
 

Annual Certification 
Letter 

External Audit 
Plan 

 

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Grant Thornton Update Report
	7 Fraud Assessment
	8 Reports Issued to Date
	9 Progress Against Audit Actions
	9. Progress against audit actions

	10 Code of Governance
	10. Code of Governance 2022 draft1

	11 Appointment of External Auditors
	12 Forward Plan

